

County of Dinwiddie P.O. Drawer 70 Dinwiddie VA 23841 (804) 469-4500 ph (804) 469-4503 fax http://www.dinwiddieva.us

# **Request for Proposals – RFP-16-123016**

# FIRE APPARATUS AND AMBULANCE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS

This procurement is governed by the Virginia Public Procurement Act and the Dinwiddie County Purchasing Policies and Procedures. All terms and conditions of the Act and the Policies and Procedures are hereby adopted and incorporated by references as a part of this notice.

#### **Contact Information:**

Questions concerning sealed proposals should be in writing addressed to

Hollie R. Casey Dinwiddie County

14016 Boydton Plank Road P O Drawer 70 Dinwiddie VA 23841

(804) 469-4500 ext. 2150 Fax (804) 469-4503

or

E-Mail: <a href="mailto:hcasey@dinwiddieva.us">hcasey@dinwiddieva.us</a>

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.		PURPOSE	4
2.		BACKGROUND	4
3.		STATEMENT OF NEEDS	4
	3.1.	Inventory	4
	3.2.	General Requirements	4
	3.3.	Preventive Maintenance, General	5
	3.4.	Preventive Maintenance For Fire Apparatus	6
	3.5.	Preventive Maintenance For Ambulances	6
	3.6.	Repairs	6
4.		PROPOSAL PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS	6
	4.1.	General Instructions	6
	4.2.	Specific Proposal Instructions	8
5.		ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSALS / AWARD OF CONTRACT	8
	5.1.	Qualifications of Offerors	8
	5.2.	Identification of Proposal Envelope	9
	5.3.	Tentative Award Schedule	9
	5.4.	Clarification of Terms	9
	5.5.	Withdrawal or Modification of Proposals	10
	5.6.	Receipt and Opening of Proposals	10
	5.7.	Evaluation Criteria	10
	5.8.	Announcement of Award	10
	5.9.	Award of Contract	11
	5.10	. Term of Contract	11
	5.11	. Contract Documents	11
	5.12	. Work Authorization	11
6.		REPORTING AND DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS	11
7.		INVOICES & PAYMENTS	12
	7.1.	Invoices	12
	7.2.	Extra Charges Not Allowed	12
	7.3.	Payment	12
	7.4.	Availability of Funds	13

8.	C	GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS	13
8.	1.	Definitions	13
8.	2.	Precedence of Terms	14
8.	3.	Laws, Regulations, and Courts	14
8.	4.	Anti-Discrimination	15
8	5.	Ethics in Public Contracting.	16
8.	6.	Drug-Free Workplace	16
8.	7.	Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986	17
8.	8.	Debarment Status	17
8.9	9.	Antitrust	17
8.	10.	Authorization to Transact Business in the Commonwealth	17
8.	11.	Contractor Advertising	17
8.	12.	Default	17
8.	13.	Claims	18
8.	14.	Severability	18
8.	15.	Indemnification	18
8.	16.	Audit	18
8.	17.	Taxes	18
8.	18.	Patents	19
8.	19.	Insurance	19
8.	20.	Proprietary Information	20
8.	21.	Assignment of Contract	20
8.	22.	Changes to the Contract	20
8.	23.	Cancellation of Contract	21
8.	24.	Contractor's Right to Stop Work or Terminate the Contract	21
8.	25.	County's Right to Terminate the Contract for Cause	22
8.	26.	Termination by County for Convenience	23
9.	S	PECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS	23
9.	1.	Additional Users/Cooperative Procurement	23
9.	2.	Testing and Inspection	23
10.	L	JST OF ATTACHMENTS	24
11.	Т	ERMS AND SIGNATURE SHEET	25
12.	N	ION-BINDING COST ESTIMATE	28

### 1. PURPOSE

Request for Proposals Prepared By: Request for Proposals Number:

Hollie R. Casey RFP-16-123016

**Accounting/Procurement Technician** 

Release date: December 30, 2016

**Deadline:** January 20, 2017 @ 3 p.m.

#### **PURPOSE**

The purpose of this Request for Proposals is to solicit sealed proposals to establish term contracts with multiple vendors to provide Preventative Maintenance and Repairs to all Fire Apparatus and Ambulances.

If you are an individual with a disability and require a reasonable accommodation, please notify Hollie R. Casey at **(804) 469-4500 ext. 2150**, at least three working days prior to the date due.

Proposals, to include addenda or changes to a response, shall not be accepted via Fax machine or by Internet E-mail, orally, or by telephone.

Nothing herein is intended to exclude any qualified responsible vendor, his/her product or service, or in any way restrain, or restrict competition. On the contrary, all responsible qualified vendors are encouraged to submit proposals.

#### 2. BACKGROUND

Dinwiddie County is a rural jurisdiction of 504 square miles with a population of approximately 28,000 located in south central Virginia.

#### 3. STATEMENT OF NEEDS

Dinwiddie County is seeking the services from a qualified vendor to provide maintenance and repairs to fire apparatus and ambulances.

#### 3.1. Inventory

Dinwiddie County Fire & EMS currently has a total of 26 in-service pieces of fire apparatus and ambulances. Inventory may be added or deleted throughout the contract period. A list of current inventory can be found in Attachment B.

#### 3.2. General Requirements

- The Contractor warrants that its facility complies with all applicable federal, state and local regulations and will remain compliant during the term of the contract.
- The Contractor is responsible for the security of any units in its custody. The Contractor's custody includes any on-site work activity at a County or Fire Department facility by the Contractor; the Contractor's transport of any unit from its location to the Contractor's facility; the return transport of the unity to its location; and any period that the unit is located

- at the Contractor's facility. The Contractor is responsible for all costs associated with correcting damage attributable to the Contractor while the unit is in the Contractor's custody. While in the Contractor's custody, apparatus shall be stored inside, in a temperature controlled environment.
- Contractor shall maintain a business operations insurance policy which includes coverage for test drives and other maintenance related activities. For all work performed off-site (at the Contractor's location), vendor shall demonstrate proof of garage keeper's insurance or equivalent coverage. The insurance described herein (garage keeper's, business operations, etc.) shall provide a minimum loss coverage of \$1 million. This insurance shall be considered separate from and necessary in addition to the insurance requirements set forth in Section 8.19.
- All work must be performed by an EVT certified technician.
- Scheduling: The County shall contact the Contractor to schedule service. The location at which services will be performed shall be determined between the County and the Contractor at the time when service is scheduled and confirmed. If services are to be performed at the apparatus location, the Contractor shall provide the County with the time at which the Contractor's service personnel will arrive to begin the service and approximately time in which the service will be completed. If services will be performed at the Contractor's facility, the County shall determine whether or not it shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to arrange for pick-up and delivery or if the County will deliver and pick-up apparatus.
- The County may choose to have State Inspections of apparatus done by a local vendor. State Inspections are completed in July of each year.

#### Warranties

- The Contractor shall not complete any repairs that are covered under warranty. All
  warranty repairs will be handled by a warranting vendor to ensure that all vehicle
  manufacturer warranty work is accomplished to guarantee compliance with necessary
  warranty.
- O The Contractor shall warranty repairs for a period of not less than the manufacturer's warranty for those parts replaced and at least ninety (90) days on other minor repairs. On major repairs, the Contractor shall warranty repairs for a period of not less than the manufacturer's warranty for both labor and parts. In the event the repair is a Contractor in-house rebuild, the warranty shall be for not less than one (1) year, 12,000 miles or 750 operating hours, whichever occurs first. For purposes of this Contract, a major repair is defined as one with a combined cost of parts and labor exceeding \$2,000 for a single task.

#### 3.3. Preventive Maintenance, General

- Preventive Maintenance may be performed at each of the respective fire stations. On-site maintenance shall be performed Monday-Friday 8:30 am-5:00 pm.
- If maintenance is performed at the Contractor's facility, the Contractor shall pick up and deliver the apparatus to the designated stations.
- Maintenance reports shall be provided on all apparatus, to include a completed checklist of County requirements and any repairs needed.
- Cost of parts and supplies shall be included in preventive maintenance fee schedule.
- Repairs needed may be made only after approval from the County.

#### 3.4. Preventive Maintenance For Fire Apparatus

The Contractor shall perform preventive maintenance and pump maintenance on fire apparatus

- Perform preventive maintenance and pump maintenance and testing
- Perform pump module maintenance and testing
- Perform maintenance in accordance with NFPA 1915 Standard for Fire Apparatus Preventive Maintenance Program.
- Perform maintenance per Dinwiddie County's Checklist, Attachment C.
- Inspection, preventive maintenance, repairs and testing required for loose equipment (i.e. nozzles, ground ladders, hoses, etc.) will not be part of preventive maintenance and will be done separately. Intake valves and discharge adaptors that are connected to the pump will be included in preventive maintenance.
- Ladder testing will be priced separate from preventive maintenance. All ladder inspections/testing are completed in October of each year.

#### 3.5. Preventive Maintenance For Ambulances

The contractor shall preform preventive maintenance on all ambulances

- Perform maintenance in accordance with NFPA 1917 Standard for Automotive Ambulances
- Perform maintenance per Dinwiddie County's Checklist, Attachment D.

#### 3.6. Repairs

- No repairs shall be made without prior approval from the County.
- Repairs will be done based on labor and materials.
- After diagnoses, the Vendor shall provide the County with an estimated cost for repair(s) prior to work being performed.

## 4. PROPOSAL PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS

#### 4.1. General Instructions

- A. In order to be considered for selection, offerors must submit a complete response to this RFP. Three (3) hardcopy proposal submittals (one original and two copies) and one electronic copy via CD-ROM or USB Drive (to include a complete copy of the proposal and a redacted copy) shall be submitted. No other distribution of the proposal shall be made by the offeror. Electronic copies of the proposal shall be provided in a single file in PDF format.
- B. Proposals shall be marked and submitted in a sealed envelope properly identified as directed in the Section 5.2 "Identification of Proposal Envelope".
- C. All information requested should be submitted. Failure to submit all information requested may result in the County requiring prompt submission of missing information and/or giving a lowered evaluation of the proposal. Proposals which are substantially incomplete or lack key information may be rejected by the County.
- D. Proposals shall be signed by an authorized representative of the offeror. Proposals must give the full business address of the Offeror and be signed by him/her with his/her usual signature. Bids by partnerships must furnish the full name of all partners and must be signed in the partnership name by one of the members of the partnership or any authorized representative, followed by the designation of the person signing. Bids by corporations must be signed with

the legal name of the corporation followed by the name of the State in which it is incorporated and by the signature and designation of the president, vice president, secretary, or other person authorized to bind it in the matter. The name of each person signing shall also be typed or printed below the signature. A bid by a person who affixes to the signature the word "President", "Vice President", "Secretary", "Agent" or other designation without disclosing the principal, may be held to be the bid of the individual signing. When requested by the County, satisfactory evidence of the authority of the officer signing on behalf of the corporation shall be furnished.

- E. Proposals should be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward, concise description of capabilities to satisfy the requirements of the RFP. Emphasis should be placed on completeness and clarity of content.
- F. Proposals should be organized in the order in which the requirements are presented in the RFP. All pages of the proposal should be numbered. Each paragraph in the proposal should reference the paragraph number of the corresponding section of the RFP. It is also helpful to cite the paragraph number, and repeat the text of the requirement as it appears in the RFP. If a response covers more than one page, the paragraph number should be repeated at the top of the next page. The proposal should contain a table of contents, which cross-references the RFP requirements. Information which the offeror desires to present that does not fall within any of the requirements of the RFP should be inserted at an appropriate place or be attached at the end of the proposal and designated as additional material. Proposals that are not organized in this manner risk elimination from consideration if the evaluators are unable to find where the RFP requirements are specifically addressed.
- G. As used in this RFP, the terms "must", "shall", "should" and "may" identify the criticality of requirements. "Must" and "shall" identify requirements whose absence will have a major negative impact on the suitability of the proposed solution. Items labeled as "should" or "may" are highly desirable, although their absence will not have a large impact and would be useful, but are not necessary. Depending on the overall response to the RFP, some individual "must" and "shall" items may not be fully satisfied, but it is the intent to satisfy most, if not all, "must" and "shall" requirements. The inability of an Offeror to satisfy a "must" or "shall" requirement does not automatically remove that Offeror from consideration; however, it may seriously affect the overall rating of the Offerors' proposal.
- H. Each copy of the proposal should be bound or contained in a single volume where practical. All documentation submitted with the proposal should be contained in that single volume. NO 3-ring binders please.
- I. Ownership of all data, materials, and documentation originated and prepared for the County pursuant to the RFP shall belong exclusively to the County and be subject to public inspection in accordance with the Virginia Freedom of Information Act. Trade secrets or proprietary information submitted by an offeror shall not be subject to public disclosure under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act; however, the offeror must invoke the protections of § 2.2-4342F of the Code of Virginia, in writing, either before or at the time the data or other material is submitted. The written notice must specifically identify the data or materials to be protected and state the reasons why protection is necessary. The proprietary or trade secret material submitted must be identified by some distinct method such as

highlighting or underlining and must indicate only the specific words, figures, or paragraphs that constitute trade secret or proprietary information. The classification of an entire proposal document, line item prices, and/or total proposal prices as proprietary or trade secrets is not acceptable and may result in rejection of the proposal.

J. All proposals must be received at the proper location listed in this RFP and by the deadline time (Local Time Prevailing). Any proposals received after the announced time and date for submittal, whether by mail or otherwise, will be rejected. The time of receipt shall be determined solely by the County of Dinwiddie.

The County is not responsible for any delay in delivery by USPS, UPS, FedEx or other delivery services. It is the responsibility of the offeror to see that proposals are received on time and in the proper location.

- K. Oral Presentation: Offerors who submit a proposal in response to this RFP may be required to give an oral presentation of their proposal to the County. This provides an opportunity for the offeror to clarify or elaborate on the proposal. This is a fact finding and explanation session only and does not include negotiation. The County will schedule the time and location of these presentations. Oral presentations are an option of the County and may or may not be conducted.
- L. The Offeror shall be fully responsible for all costs incurred in the development and submission of the proposal. It is the responsibility of the offeror to ensure that their proposals reach the appropriate office prior to the closing time on the proposal.

#### 4.2. Specific Proposal Instructions

Proposals should be as thorough and detailed as possible so that the County may properly evaluate your capabilities to provide the required goods/services. Offerors are required to submit the following items as a complete proposal. Failure by Offeror to provide the information shall render the proposal non-responsive.

- A. Return Section 11 of the RFP and all addenda acknowledgments, if any, signed and filled out as required.
- B. A written narrative statement to include:
  - 1. Experience in providing the goods/services described herein.
  - 2. Names, qualifications and experience of technicians assigned.
  - 3. List of manufacturers that Contractor is certified to work on.
  - 4. List of maintenance facilities and distances from Dinwiddie County.
  - 5. Completed W-9
- C. Non-Binding Cost Estimate (NBCE). NBCE shall be submitted on the form listed in Section 12 or on a separate sheet.

#### 5. Acceptance of Proposals / Award of Contract

#### 5.1. Qualifications of Offerors

The Offeror shall have the following qualifications in order to be considered:

- Have a shop or maintenance facility within 45 miles of Dinwiddie County.
- Have and maintain the proper licenses to perform work described in the RFP.
- Have satisfactory work experience of similar size and complexity or larger in the past two years.

During the evaluation process, the County may make such reasonable investigations as deemed proper and necessary to determine the ability of the Offerer(s) to perform the services/furnish the goods and the Offeror(s) shall furnish to the County all such information and data for this purpose as may be requested. The County reserves the right to inspect Offeror's physical facilities prior to award to satisfy questions regarding the Offeror's capabilities. The County further reserves the right to reject any bid if the evidence submitted by, or investigations of, such Offeror fails to satisfy the County that such Offeror is properly qualified to carry out the obligations of the contract and to provide the services and/or furnish the goods contemplated therein.

#### 5.2. Identification of Proposal Envelope

The complete and signed proposal must be returned in an envelope or package, sealed and identified as follows:

- Name and Address of Offeror
- Due Date <u>January 20, 2017 @ 3 p.m.</u>
- RFP Number RFP-16-123016
- RFP Title Fire Apparatus and Ambulance Maintenance and Repairs

The envelope should be addressed to:

Attn: Hollie R. Casey County of Dinwiddie 14016 Boydton Plank Road P.O. Drawer 70 Dinwiddie, VA 23841.

If a proposal is not marked with the above information, the offeror takes the risk that the envelope may be inadvertently opened and the information compromised which may cause the proposal to be disqualified. Proposals may be hand delivered to the designated location in the office issuing the solicitation.

#### 5.3. Tentative Award Schedule

Proposals Due January 20, 2017
Shortlist Interviews/Presentations February 1, 2017
Intent to Award Contract February 10, 2017
County Board for Supervisors Meeting February 21, 2017
Notice of Award February 22, 2017

#### 5.4. Clarification of Terms

If any prospective offeror has questions about the specifications or other solicitation documents, the prospective offeror should contact the procurement agent whose name appears on the face of the solicitation **by e-mail no later than five working days before the due date**. Any revisions to the solicitation will be made only by written addendum issued which shall be posted on the County's website at <a href="http://www.dinwiddieva.us">http://www.dinwiddieva.us</a>, on the Purchasing page.

#### 5.5. Withdrawal or Modification of Proposals

Proposals may be withdrawn or modified by written notice received from Offerors prior to the deadline fixed for proposal receipt. The withdrawal or modification may be made by the person signing the proposal or by an individual(s) who is authorized by him/her on the face of the proposal. Written modifications may be made on a separate document. Written modifications must be signed by the person making the modification or withdrawal.

### 5.6. Receipt and Opening of Proposals

- 5.6.1. It is the responsibility of the Offeror to assure that his/her proposal is delivered to the place designated for receipt of proposals and prior to the time set for receipt of proposals. Proposals received after the time designated for receipt of proposals will not be considered or opened.
- 5.6.2. The provisions of § 2.2-4342 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, shall be applicable to the inspection of proposals received.
- 5.6.3. In the event that the County of Dinwiddie offices are closed due to inclement weather and/or emergency situations prior to or at the time set aside for the receipt of proposals, the receipt of proposals date will default to the next open business day at the same time.

#### 5.7. Evaluation Criteria

Proposals will be evaluated by the County using the following criteria. These criteria are to be utilized in the evaluation of qualifications for development of the shortlist of those offerors to be considered for interviews and/or negotiations.

		Point Value
1.	Experience and qualifications	25
2.	References from other clients	25
3.	Distance of maintenance facility from Dinwiddie County	15
4.	Responsiveness and completeness of the proposal.	15
5.	Non-binding cost estimate	<u>20</u>
	Total	100

The County reserves the right to cancel or reject any or all proposals, to waive any informalities in any proposal received and to negotiate and award a contract deemed to be in the County's best interest. It is not required to furnish a statement of the reasons why a particular proposal was not deemed to be the most advantageous (Code of Virginia, §2.2-4359D).

#### 5.8. Announcement of Award

Following the award of a contract(s) or decision to award a contract(s), the County will announce such award of a contract or decision to award a contract on the County's website at <a href="http://www.dinwiddieva.us">http://www.dinwiddieva.us</a>, Purchasing page. Subject to the provisions of *Code of Virginia Section 2.2-4360*, any offeror who desires to protest the award of a contract(s) or decision to award a contract(s) shall submit such protest in writing to the attention of Hollie R. Casey, 14016 Boydton Plank Rd, P O Drawer 70, Dinwiddie VA 23841 (<a href="https://www.dinwiddieva.us">https://www.dinwiddieva.us</a>) no later than ten (10) days after the announcement of the award of a contract(s) or the decision to award a

contract(s), whichever occurs first. Such protest shall be clearly identified as a protest and shall include the basis for the protest and the relief sought.

#### 5.9. Award of Contract

Selection shall be made of two or more offerors deemed to be fully qualified and best suited among those submitting proposals on the basis of the evaluation factors included in the Request for Proposals, including price, if so stated in the Request for Proposals. Negotiations shall be conducted with the offerors so selected. Price shall be considered, but need not be the sole determining factor. After negotiations have been conducted with each offeror so selected, the County shall select the offeror which, in its opinion, has made the best proposal and provides the best value, and shall award the contract to that offeror. The County reserves the right to make multiple awards as a result of this solicitation. The County may cancel this Request for Proposals or reject proposals at any time prior to the award, and is not required to furnish a statement of the reasons why a particular proposal was not deemed to be the most advantageous (Code of Virginia, § 2.2-4359D). Should the County determine in writing and in its sole discretion that only one offeror is fully qualified, or that one offeror is clearly more highly qualified than the others under consideration, a contract may be negotiated and awarded to that offeror.

#### 5.10. Term of Contract

Contract will be awarded to the successful Offeror for an initial period of twelve (12) months with the option for renewals under the terms and conditions of the original contract for up to four (4) additional twelve (12) month periods, unless either party gives written notification to the other party sixty (60) days prior to expiration of the then-current term that they do not wish to renew. The contract(s) and any renewals of the contract(s) are subject to the availability of funds and annual appropriations by the Board of Supervisors. Price increases, if any, shall be in accordance with initial contract or negotiated at time of renewal.

#### 5.11. Contract Documents

The contract entered into by the parties shall consist of the Request for Proposals, the proposal submitted by the Contractor and any negotiated changes; General Terms and Conditions, the Special Terms and Conditions; the specifications; the scope of services; and all modifications and addenda to the foregoing documents, all of which shall be referred to collectively as the Contract Documents.

All time limits stated in the Contract Documents, including but not limited to the time for completion of the work, are of the essence of the contract.

#### 5.12. Work Authorization

No work shall be performed under this contract until the Contractor has been contacted by the Division Chief of Fire & EMS or such person or persons as authorized by the County. A list of authorized personnel will be provided to the successful Contractor. Any and all work performed without such approval shall be considered to be unauthorized work, will not be compensated for, and may be considered grounds for cancellation of contract.

## 6. REPORTING AND DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS

Once a contract has been awarded, all communication, documentation shall be directed to the following people:

- For Fire Apparatus: Nick Sheffield, (804) 469-5388, nsheffield@dinwiddieva.us
- For Ambulances: Dawn Titmus, (804) 469-5388, dtitmus@dinwiddieva.us
- Invoices or Accounts Payable: (804) 469-4500 or accounting@dinwiddieva.us

#### 7. <u>INVOICES & PAYMENTS</u>

#### 7.1. Invoices

All invoices must include apparatus make/model, VIN (at least last 4) and license plate number, a detailed list of work performed, and any materials/supplies. All invoices received that do not include said documented backup verification shall be returned to the Contractor unpaid.

All invoices are to be sent to: Accounts Payable, County of Dinwiddie, P.O. Drawer 70, Dinwiddie, Virginia 23841 or emailed to accounting@dinwiddieva.us.

#### 7.2. Extra Charges Not Allowed

The prices shall be for completion of requested services, ready for the County's and the public's use, and shall include all applicable labor, supervision, equipment, installation tools, materials, permits, inspection fees, freight, shipping, handling, travel, mileage, insurance, bonds, expenses, overhead, profit, discount and all else necessary as specified herein; extra charges will not be allowed unless specifically approved in writing by County.

### 7.3. Payment

Payment will be made within thirty (30) days after receipt of accurate invoice detailing the services performed during the previous month.

No payment will be made by County to subcontractors, if any. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for payments to subcontractors, if any, and for all invoicing to the County.

#### 7.3.1. <u>To Prime Contractor(s)</u>

- a. Contractor shall provide the County with a complete and accurate IRS Form W-9.
- b. Invoices for items ordered, delivered and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor directly to the Accounts Payable address shown on the purchase order/contract. All invoices shall show the County contract number and/or purchase order number and shall include all documentation as required in Section 7.1.
- c. Unless otherwise specified, any payment terms requiring payment in less than 30 days will be regarded as requiring payment 30 days after correct invoice or delivery, whichever occurs last. This shall not affect offers of discounts for payment in less than 30 days, however.
- d. The following shall be deemed to be the date of payment: the date of postmark in all cases where payment is made by mail, or the date of offset when offset proceedings have been instituted as authorized under the Virginia Debt Collection Act.
- e. Unreasonable Charges. Under certain emergency procurements and for most time and material purchases, final job costs cannot be accurately determined at the time

orders are placed. In such cases, Contractors should be put on notice that final payment in full is contingent on a determination of reasonableness with respect to all invoiced charges. Charges which appear to be unreasonable will be researched and challenged, and that portion of the invoice held in abeyance until a settlement can be reached. Upon determining that invoiced charges are not reasonable, the County shall promptly notify the Contractor, in writing, as to those charges which it considers unreasonable and the basis for the determination. A Contractor may not institute legal action unless a settlement cannot be reached within thirty (30) days of notification. The provisions of this section do not relieve the County of its prompt payment obligations with respect to those charges which are not in dispute (*Code of Virginia*, § 2.2-4363).

#### 7.3.2. To Subcontractors

- a. Any Contractor awarded a contract under this solicitation is hereby obligated:
  - (1) To pay the subcontractor(s) within seven (7) days of the Contractor's receipt of payment from the County for the proportionate share of the payment received for work performed by the subcontractor(s) under the contract; or
  - (2) To notify the County and the subcontractor(s) within seven days, in writing, of the Contractor's intention to withhold all or a part of the subcontractor's payment with the reason for nonpayment.
- b. The Contractor is obligated to pay the subcontractor(s) interest at the rate of one percent per month (unless otherwise provided under the terms of the contract) on all amounts owed by the Contractor that remain unpaid seven (7) days following receipt of payment from the County, except for amounts withheld as stated in (2) above. The date of mailing of any payment by U. S. Mail is deemed to be payment to the addressee. These provisions apply to each sub-tier Contractor performing under the primary contract. A Contractor's obligation to pay an interest charge to a subcontractor may not be construed to be an obligation of the County.

#### 7.4. Availability of Funds

It is understood and agreed between the parties herein that the County shall be bound hereunder only to the extent of the funds available, or which may hereafter become available for the purpose of this agreement, and the agreement will be contingent upon annual appropriations by the Board of Supervisors of Dinwiddie County. Failure of the Board of Supervisors to appropriate adequate funds for the terms of this Contract shall result in the immediate cancellation of this Contract. There shall be no penalty should the Board fail to make annual appropriations for this contract.

#### 8. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

#### 8.1. Definitions

Whenever used in this solicitation or in the Contract Documents, the following terms have the meanings indicated, which are applicable to both the singular and plural and the male and female gender thereof:

- 8.1.1. **Offeror/Bidder:** One who submits a response to this solicitation
- 8.1.2. **County**: The term "County" shall mean the County which is the County of Dinwiddie, Virginia through the governing body, the Board, or other agent with authority to execute the contract for the County. The County's agent is the official with the authority to sign the contract on behalf of the County.
- 8.1.3. **Contractor**: The person, firm or corporation with whom the County has entered into a contractual agreement and includes the plural number and the feminine gender when such are named in the contract as the Contractor.
- 8.1.4. **Defective**: An adjective which refers to work that is unsatisfactory, faulty, or deficient, or does not conform to the Contract Documents, or does not meet the requirements of any inspections, standard, test, or approval referred to in the Contract Documents, or has been damaged prior to final payment.
- 8.1.5. **Notice**: All written notices, demands, instructions, claims, approvals, and disapprovals required to obtain compliance with the contract requirements. Any written notice by either party to the contract shall be sufficiently given if delivered to or at the last known business address of the person, firm or corporation constituting the party to the contract, or to his, their or its authorized agent, representative or officer, or when enclosed in a postage prepaid envelope addressed to such last known business address and deposited in a United States mailbox.
- 8.1.6. **Provide**: Shall mean furnish and install ready for its intended use.
- 8.1.7. **Subcontractor**: An individual, partnership or corporation having a direct contract with the Contractor or with any other subcontractor for the performance of the work. It includes one who provides on-site labor but does not include one who only furnishes or supplies materials for the project.

#### 8.2. Precedence of Terms

The General Terms and Conditions shall apply in all instances. In the event there is a conflict between any of the General Terms and Conditions, and Special Terms and Conditions in this solicitation, the Special Terms and Conditions shall apply.

#### 8.3. Laws, Regulations, and Courts

- 8.3.1. This procurement is governed by the Virginia Public Procurement Act and the Dinwiddie County Purchasing Policies and Procedures.
- 8.3.2. The Contractor shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the performance of the work and shall give all notices required thereby.
- 8.3.3. This solicitation and any resulting contract(s) shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia and any litigation with respect thereto shall be brought in the courts of the County of Dinwiddie, Virginia. The County and the Contractor are encouraged to resolve any issues in controversy arising from the award of the contract or

any contractual dispute using Alternative Dispute Resolution (ADR) procedures (Code of Virginia, § 2.2-4366). The Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations.

#### 8.4. Anti-Discrimination

A Bidder/Offeror shall not be discriminated against in the solicitation or award of this contract because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age, disability, faith-based organizational status, any other basis prohibited by state law relating to discrimination in employment.

The County does not discriminate against faith-based organizations. If the award is made to a faith-based organization, the organization shall not discriminate against any recipient of goods, services, or disbursements made pursuant to the contract on the basis of the recipient's religion, religious belief, refusal to participate in a religious practice, or on the basis of race, age, color, gender or national origin and shall be subject to the same rules as other organizations that contract with public bodies to account for the use of the funds provided; however, if the faith-based organization segregates public funds into separate accounts, only the accounts and programs funded with public funds shall be subject to audit by the public body. (*Code of Virginia*, § 2.2-4343.1E).

If the award of this contract is made to a faith-based organization or an individual, who applies for or receives goods, services, or disbursements provided pursuant to this contract objects to the religious character of the faith-based organization form which the individual received or would receive the goods, services, or disbursements, the public body shall offer the individual, with a reasonable period of time after date of his objection, access to equivalent goods, services, or disbursements from an alternative provider.

By submitting their proposal, Offerors certify to the County that they will conform to the provisions of the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, as well as the Virginia Fair Employment Contracting Act of 1975, as amended, where applicable, the Virginians With Disabilities Act, the Americans With Disabilities Act and § 2.2-4311 of the *Virginia Public Procurement Act (VPPA)*.

In every contract over \$10,000 the provisions in 1. and 2. below apply:

- 1. During the performance of the contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:
  - a. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age, disability, status as a service disabled veteran, or any other basis prohibited by state law relating to discrimination in employment, except where there is a bona fide occupational qualification reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the Contractor. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
  - b. The Contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, will state that such Contractor is an equal opportunity employer.

- c. Notices, advertisements and solicitations placed in accordance with federal law, rule or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of meeting these requirements.
- 2. The Contractor will include the provisions of 1. above in every subcontract or purchase order over \$10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.

#### 8.5. Ethics in Public Contracting

By submitting their bid or proposal, Bidders/Offerors certify that their bid or proposal is made without collusion or fraud and that they have not offered or received any kickbacks or inducements from any other Bidders/Offerors, supplier, manufacturer or subcontractor in connection with their proposal, and that they have not conferred on any public employee having official responsibility for this procurement transaction any payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services or anything of more than nominal value, present or promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or greater value was exchanged.

The Bidder/Offeror shall identify any actual or potential conflicts of interest that exist, or which may arise if the Bidder/Offeror is recommended for award, and propose how such conflicts might be resolved.

By his/her signature on the proposal documents submitted, each Bidder/Offeror attests that his/her agents and/or employees, to the best of his/her knowledge and belief, have not in any way colluded with anyone for and on behalf of the Bidder/Offeror, or themselves, to obtain information that would give the Bidder/Offeror an unfair advantage over others, nor has he/she colluded with anyone for and on behalf of the Bidder/Offeror, or itself, to gain any favoritism in the award of this solicitation.

#### 8.6. Drug-Free Workplace

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees to (i) provide a drug-free workplace for the Contractor's employees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana is prohibited in the Contractor's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such prohibition; (iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor that the Contractor maintains a drug-free workplace; and (iv) include the provisions of the foregoing clauses in every subcontract or purchase order of over \$10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.

For the purposes of this section, "drug-free workplace" means a site for the performance of work done in connection with a specific contract awarded to a Contractor, the employees of whom are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of any controlled substance or marijuana during the performance of the contract.

#### 8.7. Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986

By submitting their proposals, Contractors certify that they do not and will not during the performance of this contract knowingly employ unauthorized workers as defined in or otherwise violate the provisions of the federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.

#### 8.8. Debarment Status

By submitting its proposal, the Contractor certifies that it is not currently debarred from submitting proposals or bids on contracts by any agency of the Commonwealth of Virginia, nor is it an agent of any person or entity that is currently debarred from submitting bids or proposals on contracts by any agency of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

#### 8.9. Antitrust

By entering into a contract, the Contractor conveys, sells, assigns, and transfers to the County all rights, title and interest in and to all causes of action it may now have or hereafter acquire under the antitrust laws of the United States and the Commonwealth of Virginia, relating to the particular goods or services purchased or acquired by the County under said contract.

#### 8.10. Authorization to Transact Business in the Commonwealth

In order to contract with Dinwiddie County, contractors organized as a stock or nonstock corporation, limited liability company, business trust, or limited partnership or registered as a registered limited liability partnership shall be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth as a domestic or foreign business entity if so required by Title 13.1 or Title 50 or as otherwise required by law. Pursuant to competitive sealed bidding or competitive negotiation, a Bidder or Offeror organized or authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth pursuant to Title 13.1 or Title 50 shall include in its bid or proposal the identification number issued to it by the State Corporation Commission. Any Bidder or Offeror that is not required to be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth as a foreign business entity under Title 13.1 or Title 50 or as otherwise required by law shall include in its bid or proposal a statement describing why the Bidder or Offeror is not required to be so authorized. Any Bidder or Offeror that fails to provide the required information shall not be awarded a contract unless a waiver of this requirement is granted by the County Administrator. Any business entity as described above that enters into a contract with a public body pursuant to Section 2.2-4311.2 of the Code of Virginia shall not allow its existence to lapse or its certificate of authority or registration to transact business in the Commonwealth to be revoked or cancelled at anytime during the contract. Dinwiddie County may void any contract with a business entity if that entity fails to remain in compliance with the provisions of this section.

#### 8.11. Contractor Advertising

In the event a contract is awarded for supplies, equipment, or services resulting from this Request for Proposals, no indication of such sales or services to the County will be used in product literature or advertising. The Contractor shall not state in any of its advertising or product literature that the County of Dinwiddie or any agency or institution of the County has purchased or uses its products or services, without written consent of the County.

#### 8.12. Default

It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to make sure that all work is adequately completed as required. In case of failure to deliver goods or services in accordance with the contract terms and

conditions, the County, after five (5) days have passed from the date of delivery of written notice, may procure them from other sources and hold the Contractor responsible for any resulting additional purchase and administrative costs. This remedy shall be in addition to any other remedies which the County may have.

#### 8.13. Claims

Disputes and claims arising under this agreement shall be processed pursuant to Virginia Code Section 2.2-4363(C).

#### 8.14. Severability

Any written contract resulting from this request for proposal shall contain a severability clause, which provides that each paragraph and provision of the contract will be severable from the entire agreement and if any provision is declared invalid the remaining provisions shall nevertheless remain in effect.

#### 8.15. Indemnification

Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the County of Dinwiddie, Virginia and their officers, agents, and employees from any claims, damages and actions of any kind or nature, whether at law or in equity, arising from or caused by the use of any materials, goods, or equipment of any kind or nature furnished by the Contractor or any services of any kind or nature furnished by the Contractor, provided that such liability is not attributable to the sole negligence of the County or to failure of the County to use the materials, goods, infrastructure or equipment in the manner already and permanently described by the Contractor on the materials, goods, infrastructure or equipment delivered.

#### 8.16. Audit

The Contractor shall retain all books, records, and other documents relative to this contract for five (5) years after final payment from the County, or until audited by the County, whichever is sooner. Such records shall include but not be limited to all paid vouchers including those for out-of-pocket expenses; other reimbursement supported by invoices, including successful bidder's copies of periodic estimates for partial payment; ledgers, cancelled checks; deposit slips; bank statements; journals; contract amendments and change orders; insurance documents; payroll documents; timesheets; memoranda; and correspondence. Such records shall be available to the County on demand and without advance notice during the Contractor's working hours. The agency, its authorized agents, and/or state auditors shall have full access to and the right to examine any of said materials during said period.

County personnel may perform in-progress and post-audits of the Contractor's records as a result of a contract awarded pursuant to this Request for Proposals.

# 8.17. <u>Taxes</u>

Sales to the County are normally exempt from State sales tax. State sales and use tax certificates of exemption, Form ST-12, will be issued upon request. Deliveries against this contract shall usually be free of Federal excise and transportation taxes. Sales tax, however, is paid by the County of Dinwiddie on materials and supplies that are installed by a Vendor and become a part of real property. Vendors are not exempt from paying taxes on these categories, as they are considered to be a cost of doing business and should be considered in pricing when preparing a proposal. The Contractor shall, without additional expense to the County, pay all applicable federal, state, and local taxes, fees, and assessments.

#### 8.18. Patents

The Contractor shall obtain all licenses necessary to use any invention, article, appliance, process, or technique of whatever kind and shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend, hold and save harmless the County, its officers, agents, and employees, from any loss or liability for or on account of the infringement of any patent or intellectual property rights in connection with any invention, process, technique, article or appliance manufactured or used in the performance of the contract, including its use by the County, unless such invention, process, technique, article, or appliance is specifically named in the specifications or drawings as acceptable for use in carrying out the work. If, before using any invention, process, technique, article, or appliance specifically named in the specifications or drawings as acceptable for use in carrying out the work, the Contractor has or acquires information that the same is covered by letters of patent making it necessary to secure the permission of the patentee, or other, for the use of the same, he shall promptly advise the County. The County may direct that some other invention, process, technique, article, or appliance be used. Should the Contractor have reason to believe that the invention, process, technique, article, or appliance so specified is an infringement of a patent, and fail to inform the County, he shall be responsible for any loss due to the infringement.

#### 8.19. Insurance

By signing and submitting a bid or proposal under this solicitation, the Bidder/Offeror certifies that if awarded the contract, it will have the following insurance coverage at the time the contract is awarded. If any subcontractors are involved, the subcontractor will have workers' compensation insurance in accordance with §§ 2.2-4332 and 65.2-800 et seq. of the *Code of Virginia*. The Bidder/Offeror further certifies that the Contractor and any subcontractors will maintain their insurance coverage during the entire term of the contract and that all insurance coverage will be provided by insurance companies authorized to sell insurance in Virginia by the Virginia State Corporation Commission.

#### MINIMUM INSURANCE COVERAGES AND LIMITS REQUIRED:

- 1. Workers' Compensation Statutory requirements and benefits. Coverage is compulsory for employers of three or more employees, to include the employer. Contractors who fail to notify the County of increases in the number of employees that change their workers' compensation requirements under the <u>Code of Virginia</u> during the course of the contract shall be in noncompliance with the contract.
- 2. Employer's Liability \$100,000.
- 3. Commercial General Liability \$1,000,000 per occurrence, \$2,000,000 aggregate. Commercial General Liability is to include bodily injury and property damage, personal injury and advertising injury, products and completed operations coverage. The "County of Dinwiddie, VA, its Officers, agents, and employees" shall be named as additional insured on a primary basis and so endorsed on the policy. Such additional insured status shall be primary without participation by County's insurers. The provisions of this paragraph shall be deemed included in the contract as if fully set out therein.

- 4. Automobile Liability \$1,000,000 per occurrence.
- 5. Umbrella Liability \$1,000,000 per occurrence.

# FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE ABOVE INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS WILL BE CONSIDERED GROUNDS FOR CANCELLATION OF CONTRACT.

# 8.20. Proprietary Information

Section 2.2-4342-F of the Code of Virginia states: Trade secrets or proprietary information submitted by a Bidder/Offeror in connection with a procurement transaction or prequalification application submitted pursuant to subsection B of 2.2-4317 shall not be subject to the Virginia Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) (2.2-3700 et seq.); however, the Bidder/Offeror shall (i) invoke the protections of this section prior to or upon submission of the data or other materials, (ii) identify the data or other materials to be protected, and (iii) state the reasons why protection is necessary. Failure to comply with these steps shall result in loss of the Bidder/Offeror's FOIA exemption.

## 8.21. Assignment of Contract

A contract shall not be assignable by the Contractor in whole or in part without the written consent of the County.

## 8.22. Changes to the Contract

Changes can be made to the contract in any of the following ways:

- 1. The parties may agree in writing to modify the terms, conditions, or scope of the contract. Any additional goods or services to be provided shall be of a sort that is ancillary to the contract goods or services, or within the same broad product or service categories as were included in the contract award. Any increase or decrease in the price of the contract resulting from such modification shall be agreed to by the parties as a part of their written agreement to modify the scope of the contract.
- 2. The County may order changes within the general scope of the contract at any time by written notice to the Contractor. Changes within the scope of the contract include, but are not limited to, things such as services to be performed, the method of packing or shipment, and the place of delivery or installation. The Contractor shall comply with the notice upon receipt, unless the Contractor intends to claim an adjustment to compensation, schedule, or other contractual impact that would be caused by complying with such notice, in which case the Contractor shall, in writing, promptly notify the County of the adjustment to be sought, and before proceeding to comply with the notice, shall await the County's written decision affirming, modifying, or revoking the prior written notice. If the County decides to issue a notice that requires an adjustment to compensation, the Contractor shall be compensated for any additional costs incurred as the result of such order and shall give the County a credit for any savings. Said compensation shall be determined by one of the following methods:
  - a. By mutual agreement between the parties in writing; or

- b. By agreeing upon a unit price or using a unit price set forth in the contract, if the work to be done can be expressed in units, and the Contractor accounts for the number of units of work performed, subject to the County's right to audit the Contractor's records and/or to determine the correct number of units independently; or
- c. By ordering the Contractor to proceed with the work and keep a record of all costs incurred and savings realized. A markup for overhead and profit may be allowed if provided by the contract. The same markup shall be used for determining a decrease in price as the result of savings realized. The Contractor shall present the County with all vouchers and records of expenses incurred and savings realized. The County shall have the right to audit the records of the Contractor as it deems necessary to determine costs or savings. Any claim for an adjustment in price under this provision must be asserted by written notice to the County within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of the written order from the County. Neither the existence of a claim nor a dispute resolution process, litigation or any other provision of this contract shall excuse the Contractor from promptly complying with the changes ordered by the County or with the performance of the contract generally.

#### 8.23. Cancellation of Contract

The County reserves the right to cancel and terminate any resulting contract, in part or in whole, without penalty, upon 60 days written notice to the Contractor. In the event the initial contract period is for more than 12 months, the resulting contract may be terminated by either party, without penalty, after the initial 12 months of the contract period upon 60 days written notice to the other party. Any contract cancellation notice shall not relieve the Contractor of the obligation to deliver and/or perform on all outstanding orders issued prior to the effective date of cancellation.

#### 8.24. Contractor's Right to Stop Work or Terminate the Contract

If the work should be stopped under any order of any court or other public authority for a period of ninety (90) days through no fault of the Contractor or of anyone employed by him, or if the County should fail to pay to the Contractor within thirty (30) days when no dispute exists as to the sum, then the Contractor may, upon ten (10) calendar days written notice to the County, stop work or terminate the contract and recover from the County payment for the cost of the work actually performed, together with overhead and profit thereon, but profit shall be recovered only to the extent that the Contractor can demonstrate that he would have had profit on the entire contract if he had completed the work. The Contractor may not receive profit or any other type of compensation for parts of the work not performed. The Contractor may recover the cost of physically closing down the job site, but no other costs of termination. The County may offset any claims it may have against the Contractor against the amounts due to the Contractor. In no event shall termination of the contract by the Contractor terminate the obligations of the Contractor's surety on its payment and performance bonds.

#### 8.25. County's Right to Terminate the Contract for Cause

- 8.25.1. If the Contractor should be adjudged as bankrupt, or if he should make a general assignment for the benefit of his creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed on account of his insolvency, the County may terminate the contract. If Contractor violates any provision of the Virginia Governmental Fraud Act, the County may terminate the contract. If the Contractor should persistently or repeatedly refuse or should fail, except in cases for which extension of time is provided, to supply enough properly skilled workmen or proper materials, or if he should fail to make prompt payment to subcontractors or suppliers of material or labor, or persistently disregards laws, ordinances, or the written instructions of the County, or otherwise be guilty of a substantial violation of any provision of the contract, then the County may terminate the contract. The County retains the sole discretion to determine any violation of this section.
- 8.25.2. Prior to termination of the contract, the County shall give the Contractor and his surety ten (10) calendar days written notice, during which the Contractor and/or his surety may rectify the cause of the termination. If rectified to the satisfaction of the County within said ten (10) days, the County may rescind its notice of termination. If it does not, the termination for cause shall become effective at the end of the ten-day (10) notice period. In the alternative, the County may postpone the effective date of the termination notice, at its sole discretion, if it should receive reassurances from the Contractor and/or its surety that the causes of termination will be remedied in a time and manner which the County finds acceptable. If at any time more than ten (10) days after the notice of termination, the County determines that Contractor and/or its surety has not or is not likely to rectify the causes of termination in an acceptable manner or within the time allowed, then the County may immediately terminate the contract for cause by giving written notice to the Contractor and its surety. This decision shall be final and not subject to an appeal to any court of law or equity. In no event shall termination for cause terminate the obligations of the Contractor's surety on its payment and performance bonds.
- 8.25.3. Notice of terminations, whether initial or given after a period of postponement, may be served upon the Contractor and the surety by mail or any other means at their last known places of business in Virginia or elsewhere, by delivery to any officer or management/supervisory employee of either wherever they may be found, or, if no such officer, employee or place of business is known or can be found by reasonable inquiry within three (3) days, by posting the notice at the job site. Failure to accept or pick up registered or certified mail addressed to the last known address shall be deemed to be delivery.
- 8.25.4. Upon termination of the contract, the County shall take possession of its property and of all materials, tools, and appliances thereon and finish the work by whatever method the County may deem expedient. In such case the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment. If the expense of finishing the work, including compensation for additional managerial and administrative services shall exceed the unpaid balance of the contract price, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the County, together with any other expenses of terminating the contract and having it completed by others.

8.25.5. Termination of the contract under this section is without prejudice to any other right or remedy of the County.

#### 8.26. <u>Termination by County for Convenience</u>

- 8.26.1. County may terminate this contract at any time without cause, in whole or in part, upon giving the Contractor notice of such termination. Upon such termination, the Contractor shall immediately cease work and remove from the project site all of its labor forces and such of its materials as County elects not to purchase or to assume in the manner hereinafter provided. Upon such termination, the Contractor shall take such steps as County may require to assign to the County the Contractor's interest in all subcontracts and purchase orders designated by County. After all such steps have been taken to County's satisfaction, the Contractor shall receive as full compensation for termination and assignment the following:
  - (1) All amounts then otherwise due under the terms of this contract as of the latest request for payment,
  - (2) Amounts due for work performed subsequent to the latest request for payment through the date of termination, and
  - (3) Reasonable compensation for the actual cost of demobilization incurred by the Contractor as a direct result of such termination. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any compensation for lost profits or for any other type of contractual compensation or damage other than those provided by the preceding sentence. Upon payment of the forgoing, County shall have no further obligations to the Contractor of any nature.
- 8.26.2. In no event shall termination for the convenience of the County terminate the obligations of the Contractor's surety on its payment and performance bonds.

#### 9. SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

#### 9.1. Additional Users/Cooperative Procurement

This procurement is being conducted under the provisions of Section 2.2-4304 of the Virginia Public Procurement Act (VPPA), "Cooperative Procurement". As stated, a public body may purchase from another public body's contract even if it did not participate in the Request For Proposals (RFP) or Invitation for Bids (RFP), if the RFP or RFP specified that the procurement was being conducted on behalf of other public bodies.

If authorized by the Offeror, the resultant contract may be extended to any jurisdiction/public body within the Commonwealth of Virginia to purchase at contract prices in accordance with contract terms. It is the Offeror's responsibility to notify the jurisdiction/public bodies of the availability of contract(s). Offerors desiring to offer to other jurisdictions/public bodies under this clause shall so indicate in their response.

#### 9.2. Testing and Inspection

The County reserves the right to conduct any test/inspection it may deem advisable to assure goods and services conform to the specifications. All products and services provided shall be in compliance/ accordance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations. If

seasonal limitations prevent performance of any required testing of the product, the warranty period for such equipment shall begin after the tests have been successfully performed.

# 10. <u>LIST OF ATTACHMENTS</u>

Attachment A – Fire Station Locations

Attachment B – Apparatus List

Attachment C – Fire Apparatus Maintenance Checklist

Attachment D – Ambulance Maintenance Checklist

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

### 11. TERMS AND SIGNATURE SHEET

# RFP 16-123016 Fire Apparatus and Ambulance Maintenance and Repair

By signature, I certify that the proposal as submitted complies with all Terms and Conditions as set forth in RFP 16-123016. If there are any parts of the terms and conditions that the company cannot meet, I have indicated which ones on an attached page.

By signature, I certify that this proposal is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, firm or person submitting a proposal for the same material, equipment or services, and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. I understand collusive bidding is a violation of Virginia Governmental Fraud Act and Federal Law and can result in fines, prison sentences and civil damages awards. I agree to abide by all conditions of this proposal and certify that I am authorized to sign this proposal for the Offeror.

Signature:	Date:
Name (type or print):	
Official Title:	
Company Name:	
FIN or SSN:	
State of Incorporation:	
Address:	
Telephone:	
E-Mail:	
Fax:	
Please list all subcontractors, if any:	
Company Name, Address	License #

# 11.1. STATE CORPORATION COMMISSION REGISTRATION

is a corporation or other business ent <b>OR-</b>	tity with the following SCC identification number:
is not a corporation, limited liability partnership, or business trust <b>-OR-</b>	company, limited partnership, registered limited liability
ordinary and customary business any em counting any employees or agents in Vir Virginia before they become contracts, a that is needed in order to assemble, main	does not regularly and continuously maintain as part of its aployees, agents, offices, facilities, or inventories in Virginia (reginia who merely solicit orders that require acceptance outside and not counting any incidental presence of the bidder in Virginiatain, and repair goods in accordance with the contracts by whis virginia from bidder's out-of-state location) -OR-
accurately and completely discloses the	is including with this bid an opinion of legal counsel which undersigned bidder's current contacts with Virginia and descritransaction of business in Virginia within the meaning of § 13 13.1 or 50 of the Code of Virginia.
currently have pending before the SCC a Commonwealth of Virginia and wish to	a if you have not completed any of the foregoing options but an application for authority to transact business in the be considered for a waiver to allow you to submit the SCC for bids (the Commonwealth reserves the right to determine in iver):
and requirements for area(s) of similar continuous service or contract period.	nces that list a brief description of the same type of work ar size or larger, satisfactorily completed with dates of location, names, addresses, and phone numbers of Own is they have worked with a minimum of two (2) year. A able if needed for additional space.
Reference #1	
Name of County, City, Agency or Fir	m:
Address:	
Contact with Title:	Telephone:
Types of services provided:	
Contract Dates: From	То

# Reference #2

Name of County, City, Agency or Firm:					
Address:					
Contact with Title:					
Types of services provided:					
Contract Dates: From	To				
Reference #3					
Name of County, City, Agency or Firm:					
Address:					
Contact with Title:	Telephone:				
Types of services provided:					
Contract Dates: From	То				

## 12. NON-BINDING COST ESTIMATE

## 12.1.**RATES**

Successful Offeror shall furnish all labor, supervision, equipment, tools, materials, and all else necessary, to perform preventive maintenance and repair on fire apparatus and ambulances for the County of Dinwiddie, Virginia (hereinafter referred to as the "County"), at the non-binding prices provided below, as follows:

Item #	Description	Price per unit
Part A	Preventive Maintenance on Fire Apparatus	Price per apparatus
1.	Chassis Preventive Maintenance	\$
2.	Pump Service/Maintenance	\$
3.	Skid Unit Maintenance	\$
4.	Pump Testing	\$
Part B	Aerial and Ladder Testing	See line item unit
5.	Aerial Ladder/Platform Trucks, per unit	\$
6.	Ground Ladders, price per ft	\$
7.	Heat Sensor Labels, each	\$
8.	Danger/Angle/Electrical Placards, pack	\$
Part C	Preventive Maintenance on Ambulance	Price per ambulance
9.	Preventive Maintenance on Ambulance	\$
Part D	Repairs	Hourly Rate
10.	Labor Rate for Repairs	\$
11.	Parts and Supplies, percentage discount off OEM list price	%
Part E	Pick-up and Delivery Service for Repairs Only	Flat rate per apparatus
12.	Pick-up and delivery fee, round trip from apparatus location to the Contractor's facility	\$

<sup>\*</sup>Please provide any other unit prices that may not be listed above.

# ATTACHMENT A FIRE STATION LOCATIONS

Dinwiddie Vol Fire Dept (Co. 1) 13516 Boydton Plank Road Dinwiddie, VA 23841

Ford Vol Fire Dept (Co. 2) 13402 Cox Road Church Road, VA 23833

McKenney Vol Fire Dept (Co. 3) 10207 Doyle Blvd. McKenney, VA 23872

Namozine Vol Fire Dept (Co. 4) 3913 Pelham Ave. Petersburg, VA 23803

Old Hickory Vol Fire Dept (Co. 5) 25813 Courthouse Road Stony Creek, VA 23882

# ATTACHMENT B APPARATUS LIST

# **Engines**

Designation	Dinwiddie	Ford	McKenney	Namozine	Old Hickory
	Co.1	Co. 2	Co. 3	Co. 4	Co. 5
Unit	Engine 1	Engine 2	Engine 3	Engine 4	Engine 5
			New Engine Spring 2017		
Year/Make/Model	2007 Pierce Enforcer	2014 Spartan ERV	2017 Spartan ERV	2014 Spartan ERV	2014 Spartan ERV
		MetroStar	MetroStar	MetroStar	MetroStar
Cab Design/	Custom /	Custom /		Custom /	Custom /
Seating	6 Firefighters	6 Firefighters		6 Firefighters	6 Firefighters
Pump/	(6") 1250 GPM / 1000	(6") 1250 GPM /		(6") 1250 GPM /	(6") 1250 GPM / 1000
Tank Size	gal tank	1000 Gal Tank		1000 Gal Tank	Gal Tank
Engine Type	Cummins	Cummins ISL		Cummins ISL	Cummins ISL
	ISL	450 HP		450 HP	450 HP
Transmission Type	Allison Automatic	Allison Automatic		Allison Automatic	Allison Automatic
Transmission Model	3000EVS	3000 EVS		3000 EVS	3000 EVS
Fuel Type	Diesel	Diesel		Diesel	Diesel
Pump Brand	Waterous	Waterous		Waterous	Waterous
Pump Model #	CS	CSU		CSU	CSU
Pump Serial #	126966	149009		149010	149008
Special Equipment	Foam System	FoamPro		FoamPro	FoamPro
		Foam System		Foam System	Foam System
		-		-	
Generator Type / Size	10KW	Onan 10kw		Onan 10kw	Onan 10kw
	Hydraulic	Hydraulic		Hydraulic	Hydraulic

# **Reserve Engines/Ladder Truck**

Designation	Ford	McKenney	McKenney	Ladder Truck	
	Co. 2	Co. 3	Co. 3*	Co. 4	
Unit	Reserve 2	Engine 34	Engine 33	Truck 4	
Year/Make/Model	1993 Pierce Dash	1993 Pierce Dash	1985 FMC	1990 Federal Fire Truck	
Cab Design/	Custom /	Custom /	Commercial /	Custom /	
Seating	4 Firefighters	4 Firefighters	2 Firefighters	6 Firefighters	
Pump/	(6") 1250 GPM / 1000 gal	(6") 1250 GPM /	(5") 1000 GPM /	N/A	
Tank Size	tank	1000 Gal Tank	750 Gal Tank		
Engine Type	Detroit Series	Detroit Series	Chevrolet 7.0	Detroit V92	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Model # 6V92TA	Model # 6V92TA			
Transmission Type	Allison Automatic	Allison Automatic	Manual	Allison Automatic	
Transmission Model					
Fuel Type	Diesel	Diesel	Gas	Diesel	
Pump Brand	Waterous	Waterous	FMC	N/A	
Pump Model #	WCS-125	WCS-125	Ram SS	N/A	
Pump Serial #	27042W	27043W	R10 SS	N/A	
Special Equipment	Foam System	Foam System		135' Ladder	
Generator Type / Size	6.0 KW	6.0 KW	4.5 KW		
	Diesel	Gas	Gas		

<sup>\*</sup>This item only is to be billed to the Town of Mckenney, Attention: Martha Stone, P.O. Box 309, McKenney, VA 23872.

# **Tankers**

Designation	Dinwiddie	Ford	McKenney	Namozine	Old Hickory
	Co.1	Co. 2	Co. 3	Co. 4	Co. 5
Unit	Tanker 1	Tanker 2	Tanker 3	Tanker 4	Tanker 5
Year/Make/Model	2001 Pierce Freightliner	2007 KME	1997 E-One	2005 Spartan Diamond	2007 KME
	FL112	International 7600	Freightliner FL-80	Chassis/Smeal Body	International 7400
Cab Design/	Commercial /	Commercial /	Commercial /	Custom/	Commercial /
Seating	2 Firefighters	2 Firefighters	2 Firefighters	6 Firefighters	2 Firefighters
Pump/	(6") 1250 GPM / 3000	(6") 1250 GPM /	(6") 1250 GPM /	(6") 1500 GPM /	(6") 1250 GPM /
Tank Size	gal tank	3000 gal tank	1250 gal tank	2000 gal tank	1800 gal tank
Engine Type	Cummins ISM 400H	Cummins ISM	Cummins C 8.3	Cummins 400 HP	International DT570
	Model # 15M400	410 HP			330 HP
Transmission Type	Allison Automatic	Allison Automatic	Allison Automatic	Allison Automatic	Allison Automatic
Transmission Model		4000 EVS			3000 EVS
Fuel Type	Diesel	Diesel	Diesel	Diesel	Diesel
Pump Brand	Waterous	Waterous	Waterous	Waterous	Waterous
Pump Model #	WCS-125	CS Y Single Stage	WCSYDX 125-18		CS Y Single Stage
Pump Serial #	106184				
Special Equipment	10" Rear Dump	10" Rear Dump	1997 E-One	10" Rear Dump	10" Rear Dump
	(2) 8" Side Dumps	(2) 8" Side Dumps	Freightliner FL-80	(2) 8" Side Dumps	(2) 8" Side Dumps
	•			Foam Pro	
Generator Type / Size	N/A		6 kw Kubota	8.0 KW	
• •			Gasoline	Hydraulic	

# **Brush Trucks**

Designation	Dinwiddie	Ford	McKenney	Namozine	Old Hickory
	Co. 1	Co. 2	Co. 3	Co. 4	Co. 5
Unit	Brush 1	Brush 2	Brush 3	Brush 4	Brush 5
Year/	2012 / Ford	1997 / Ford	2006 / Ford	2008/ Ford	2011/ Ford
Manufacturer					
Cab Design/	Commercial /	Commercial /	Commercial /	Commercial/	Commercial/
Seating	2 firefighters	2 firefighters	2 firefighters	2 firefighters	2 firefighters
Pump/	200 GPM	250 GPM/	250 GPM/	250 GPM/	200 GPM
Tank Size	250 water /10 foam	150 gal tank	150 gal tank	150 gal tank	250 water /10 foam
Engine Type	Ford Power Stroke	Ford Power Stroke	Ford Power Stroke	Ford Power Stroke	Ford Power Stroke
Transmission					
Transmission Type	Automatic	Automatic	Automatic	Automatic	Automatic
Transmission Model					
Fuel Type	Diesel	Diesel	Diesel	Diesel	Diesel
Pump Brand	Hale	Hale American/Honda	Hale	Hale	Hale
Pump Model #	HP200B23				HP200B23
Pump Serial #					
Special Equip.	Scotty Foam Sys	Scotty Foam Sys	Scotty Foam Sys	Scotty Foam Sys	Scotty Foam Sys
	Gasoline Skid Unit	Gasoline Skid Unit	Gasoline Skid Unit	Gasoline Skid Unit	Gasoline Skid Unit

# **AMBULANCES**

All ambulances float to difference locations. All are diesel engines.

- 2017 International Terrastar/PL Custom, to arrive Spring 2017
- 2015 International Terrastar/PL Custom
- 2014 International Terrastar/PL Custom
- 2014 International Terrastar/PL Custom
- 2013 International Terrastar/PL Custom
- 2012 International Terrastar/PL Custom
- 2002 Ford/Osage Ambulance

## ATTACHMENT C FIRE APPARATUS MAINTENANCE CHECKLIST

#### **Section 1: Chassis Preventive Maintenance**

#### Chassis

- 1. Change engine oil/oil filter
- 2. Change fuel filter(s)
- 3. Change air filter
- 4. Change coolant filter
- 5. Check coolant level and antifreeze protection/ if low fill
- 6. Pressure test coolant system for leaks
- 7. Perform PH test on coolant condition
- 8. Check transmission fluid level/ if low fill
- 9. Change external transmission filter
- 10. Lubrication of Chassis
  - a. Balls Joints
  - b. King Pins
  - c. Spindles and bushings
  - d. Attaching hardware
  - e. Axle beams and housings
  - f. Axle shafts
  - g. Axle power dividers
  - h. Differentials and controls
  - i. Two-speed axle shaft units
  - j. Upper and lower control arms
- 11. Check rear end grease
- 12. Check air compressor filter
- 13. Check brake adjustment on air brakes
- 14. Inspect tires for damage/inflated to tire recommended pressure
- 15. Clean battery post
- 16. Perform voltage check on chassis batteries
- 17. Check battery electrolyte level
- 18. Check alternator output at batteries
- 19. Check alternator belt tension
- 20. Check windshield wipers, wiper operation
- 21. Check windshield washer level and operation/ if low fill
- 22. Check battery conditioner / Kussmaul Operation
- 23. Check water pump
- 24. Check clutch and adjustment
- 25. Perform visual inspection of hose and belts
- 26. Lubricate compartment hinges/door latches
- 27. Check and adjust cab spotlights if applicable
- 28. Check vehicle siren
- 29. Check air horns for proper operation and adjustment
- 30. Check water level gauges
- 31. Check all headlights, clearance and ICC lights
- 32. Check all warning lights
- 33. Check telescoping lights for adjustment & proper operation; lube as needed

- 34. Check all cab, canopy interior, step, dash, and map lights
- 35. Check pump panel lights
- 36. Check all compartment lights
- 37. Check high gear lockup operation
- 38. Lube and check UL panel counter
- 39. Drive truck to check for vibrations, noise, etc.
- 40. Adjust and lube hose bed lights
- 41. Inspect all exposed wiring/electrical systems
- 42. Check steering sector oil and play
- 43. Check air tanks
- 44. Check/change air dryer cartridge if applicable
- 45. Inspect powered equipment racks for operation if applicable
- 46. Lubricate the quick dump valves and associated parts

#### On Board Generator

- 1. Change oil/oil filter
- 2. Change fuel filter(s)
- 3. Check air filter
- 4. Check Start Stop Operation
- 5. Check Pre-Heat Operation
- 6. Service Sediment Bowl
- 7. Check voltage output
- 8. Inspect Exhaust System
- 9. Inspect Generator Mounting
- 10. Inspect battery condition

## **Section 2: Pump Maintenance**

- 1. Check and fill primer reservoir, check oil relief hole
- 2. Drain pump & run dry vacuum test
- 3. Lubricate all fittings
- 4. Change lubricant in pump transmission
- 5. Inspect all pumping
- 6. Lubricate & service pump shift
- 7. Check all intakes for strainers
- 8. Inspect for oil/water leaks in pump area
- 9. Operate ball valves and lubricate where needed
- 10. Lubricate pump related drive lines
- 11. Lubricate hose reel chains, check reel lock mechanism
- 12. Lubricate all pump drains
- 13. Lubricate pump panel throttle cable, check for proper operation & adjustment
- 14. Lubricate and exercise c/o valve, check transfer valve internal swing checks
- 15. Lubricate outboard bearings
- 16. Lubricate primer valve
- 17. Lubricate deck gun
- 18. Lubricate pump panel butterfly valves
- 19. Lubricate steamer intake threads
- 20. Lubricate intake & discharge swivels
- 21. Check gaskets in all caps and swivels, clean all threads on discharges & intakes
- 22. Change pump gear box lubricant, remove and clean Waterous internal strainer if applicable

- 23. Check oil in the Waterous electric shifter
- 24. Check pump shift system for proper operation and air leaks
- 25. Lubricate pump shift over ride cable and check proper operation
- 26. Operate and check leaks at 150 psi
- 27. Check discharge gauges for proper operation & leaks
- 28. Check valves for leakby
- 29. Lube, operate, and check relief valve at 150 psi., lube and clean R.V. strainer
- 30. Check pump panel tachometer operation and accuracy with cab
- 31. Check pump panel engine monitor system gauges
- 32. Check pump packing, adjust if needed
- 33. Check booster hose system for leaks
- 34. Flush all drains, lubricate and check for closing and leakby
- 35. Check all pump panel knobs and controls for proper attachment
- 36. Inspect foam system if applicable
- 37. Check cab transmission lock mechanism for proper adjustment
- 38. Check rear fuel filter
- 39. Clean pump valve controls

#### **Section 3: Skid Unit Pump Maintenance**

- 1. Drain and change engine oil
- 2. Change engine oil filter (*if applicable*)
- 3. Change engine fuel filter
- 4. Check air filter (change if needed)
- 5. Check engine and pump mounts
- 6. Check engine exhaust system and attachment to engine head
- 7. Remove and inspect engine spark plugs for oil residue or fuel
- 8. Check plug wire condition
- 9. Change pump oil on unit with a secondary gear box
- 10. Run engine and check for leaks
- 11. Check primer system and perform dry vac test
- 12. Perform a pump drain down test, check sealing of tank valves
- 13. Check condition and presence of intake strainers
- 14. Lubricate all valve controls and check adjustment
- 15. Check cap and adapter gaskets
- 16. Clean NST threads on intakes and discharges, check condition of lubricate the swivel
- 17. Lubricate booster reel bearings
- 18. Lubricate booster reel roller assemblies
- 19. Check electric rewind for proper operation at all stations
- 20. Lubricate reel chain
- 21. Pump and check for leaks
- 22. Check nozzle for proper operation and leaks, lubricate moving parts
- 23. Check the reel swivel for leaks
- 24. Check booster hose gaskets for leaks
- 25. Check max pressure at max RPM with tank suction open and tank refill closed
- 26. Check engine for oil leaks after pumping

#### **Section 4: Pump Test**

1. To be done in accordance with NFPA 1911 chapter 18

# ATTACHMENT D AMBULANCE MAINTENANCE CHECKLIST

Ambulance preventive maintenance shall include, but is not limited to, the following:

- 1. Change engine oil and filter
- 2. Change fuel filters
- 3. Change coolant filter
- 4. Check air filters, replace if needed
- 5. Change external transmission filter
- 6. Lube chassis
- 7. Check transmission fluid level, if low fill
- 8. Check rear end grease
- 9. Check steering sector oil and play
- 10. Check coolant level and antifreeze protection, if low fill
- 11. Check brake adjustment on air brake units
- 12. Check windshield wipers, wiper operation
- 13. Check windshield washer level and operation, if low fill
- 14. Check seatbelts for proper operation and positioning at all riding locations
- 15. Check running lights
- 16. Pressure test coolant systems for leaks
- 17. Perform PH test on coolant condition
- 18. Perform visual inspection of hose and belts
- 19. Check alt belt tension
- 20. Perform voltage check on the chassis batteries and note voltages for each
- 21. Check that air in all tires are inflated to recommended pressure. Adjust air pressure, if needed
- 22. Check tire condition
- 23. Check battery electrolyte level
- 24. Check alternator output at batteries: at idle with no load, at 1200 RPM with no load and at 1200 PRM with load.
- 25. Lube auto chains and do a visual check
- 26. Document any repairs needed